ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS 

1. 	 THE BERKELEY COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT, STITING AS A JlNENlLE COURT, 
COMMITTED MULTIPLE STATUfORY, PROCEDURAL AND CONSTrruIONAL DUE 
PROCESS VIOLATIONS WHICH PREJUDICED PETITIONER'S CASE BY: 

a. 	 holding critical proceedings despite the involuntary absence of the Petitioner from 
such proceedings, which resulted in possible, if not probable, prejudice to 
Petitioner; 

b. 	 permitting the State to file its motion to transfer the Petitioner's case to the 
criminal jurisdiction of the Berkeley County Circuit Court outside the timelines 
mandated by West Virginia Code § 49-5-10 and Rule 20, West Virginia Rules of 
Juvenile Procedure and effecting multiple "good cause" continuances resulting in 
the passage of 79 days before Petitioner's Transfer Hearing was finally held; and 

c. 	 by finding probable cause to support the transfer of Petitioner's case to the adult 
criminal jurisdiction of the trial court, pursuant to West Virginia Code § 49-5
1O(d)(l), based upon wholly inadequate evidence other than inadmissible hearsay 
testimony. 

2. 	 THE BERKELEY COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT COMMITTED MULTIPLE ERRORS, IN 
VIOLATION OF W.VA. CODE § 49-S-13(e), AND BOTH THE CONSTITUTIONS OF WEST 
VIRGINIA ANt> THE UNITED STATES, WITH REGARD TO ITS IMPOSITION OF A 
DETERMINATE SENTENCE OF FORTY (40) YEARS UPON PETITIONER, BY: 

a. 	 abusing its discretion by failing to make findings as to the possibility of the rehabilitation of 
Petitioner or to fully consider sentencing Petitioner pursuant to the authority ofW.Va. Code § 
49-S-13(e); 

b. 	 committing error of constitutional magnitude by its imposition of a sentence on Petitioner that 
is grossly disproportionate to that imposed by the same court and same judge upon 
Petitioner's adult co-defendant convicted of the identical offenses and upon identical factual 
circumstances; and 

c. 	 committing Constitutional error by imposing a sentence so excessive for the circumstances of 
the case as to mandate being held to be "cruel and unusual" punishment. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On December 9,2010, two white males, wearing all black clothing, black ski masks and wearing 

gloves entered the residence of Ms. Deborah Beckman, where she operated Beck's Kennels. Ms. 

Beckman was there with Wendy Beckman and Amy Edwards, her daughter and step-daughter. One of 

the men held the women at gunpoint, in the kitchen, while the other man went into the family's office and 
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exited with a small safe located there. The men then exited the residence and drove away. (App. Rec. 7, 

pp.23-25) 

Berkeley Co. Sheriffs Deputy K. Huffman responded to the scene and noted that there were no 

signs of forced entry. Ms. Beckman indicated that the safe was of nominal value, approximately $30.00, 

and that it contained a certified or cashier's check of uncertain amount, approximately $2,000.00 in cash, 

and the Last Will and Testament ofher recently deceased husband. With no visual identification of the 

men and no fmgerprints being found, there was insufficient information for an NCIC entry and no leads to 

pursue, other than the apparent fact that the men had prior knowledge of the location of the small safe. 

Consequently, the case was transferred to the Sheriffs Criminal Investigation Division. (Jd.) 

On January 11,2011, Deputy St. Clair and Lt. Harmison, ofthe Berkeley Co. Sheriffs Dept., 

received an anonymous tip that a "Georgie W." may have been involved in the December robbery at 

Beck's Kennels. Deputy St. Clair and Lt. Harmison proceeded to speak with "Georgie W.," who lived 

with his grandmother, who was his adoptive mother. She gave the officers permission to speak with 

Petitioner, aka "Georgie," who was 16 years of age, having a birthdate ofAugust 1, 1994. After being 

provided his Miranda rights by Deputy S1. Clair, he agreed to talk with the officers. (App. Rec. 7, p. 26) 

During his interview, Georgie denied involvement in the robbery but said he did have some 

information about it. He then advised that his friend "Derrski" told him that he and "Alex" got money 

from a house. Georgie further said that "Derrski" had spent all of his money on car stereo equipment and 

guns. As to "Derrski's" last name, Georgie said that he believed his name was "Darren" but didn't know 

his last name. He denied knowing "Alex's" full name. (Jd.) 

On January 14, 2011, Deputy St. Clair went to speak with Georgie'S former girlfriend and cousin, 

Ashley W., 14 years of age. He was met by Elizabeth McClain, Ashley's grandmother, who told him that 

"Georgie" had come into a lot of money in December from unknown sources. She also told the deputy 

that "Georgie" had bought a car, along with new rims and a car stereo, with the money. Ms. McClain also 

spoke of"Georgie" trying to give her a necklace which he claimed to have bought at Kay's Jewelry Store, 

but that it looked old and used and the box which it was in looked worn. Ms. McClain advised Deputy S1. 
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Clair that Ashley was not at home but that he could come back later to speak with her. She also 

mentioned wanting to show the deputy a drawing that might be important. (Jd.) 

Deputy St. Clair then went to Alex Salazar, the owner of the vehicle reportedly purchased by 

Georgie. Mr. Salazar advised the deputy that he had sold the car to Georgie on December 10,2010 for 

$1,500.00 but had subsequently gotten it back from an impound lot because Georgie got into trouble and 

no longer wanted the car. Mr. Salazar also told Deputy St. Clair that Georgie had replaced the tires, rims 

and put in a new stereo system. (Jd.) 

Deputy St. Clair then went to Bob's Tires and spoke with the owner, Doug Stotler, who advised 

that Georgie had ordered new tires and rims costing about $850.00 on December 10, 2010. (Jd.) 

On January 14,2011, Deputy St. Clair and Lt. Harmison went to Shepherdstown, WV to speak 

with "Derrski," who was later identified as Ian Michael Derr (hereinafter "Derr.") After being advised of 

his Miranda rights, Derr admitted his participation in the December 9,2010 robbery. Derr advised the 

officers he had been asked by "Ronald" ifhe wanted to make some quick money from some old people he 

knew had a safe with money in it. After agreeing to be involved, on the date in question, he and "Ronald" 

drove to Beck's Kennels and parked. Derr said that Ashley W. was with them but stayed in the car. Derr 

then related that he and "Ronald" entered the Beckman residence; that he was carrying a 9mm handgun; 

and that "Ronald" was carrying a pellet gun. Derr said he told the women in the home to sit down in the 

kitchen and be quiet and no one would get hurt. He said "Ronald" then ran into a back room and grabbed 

a little safe, after which the two of them ran back to Derr's vehicle and left. (App. Rec. 7, pp.26-27) 

Derr said that "Ronald" gave Ashley W. a necklace from the residence. After prying the safe 

open, Derr said that "Ronald" gave Ashley about $300 "for being there with them" and counted out 

between $5,000 and $7,000. Derr said the safe also had some papers and a check for $5,000. He also told 

the deputies that Ronald gave him $2,500 and kept the rest ofthe money. Derr then drove to the "Ruins" 

on River Road, Shepherdstown, WV, where he threw the safe into the Potomac River. When Derr took 

the police there, they were unable to recover the safe, but found an envelope apparently from Beck's 
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Kennels. Deputy St. Clair seized the 9mm handgun used by Derr in the robbery, but Derr said he had 

spent the money from the robbery on a car stereo, marijuana and had paid his rent. (App. Rec. 7, p. 27) 

At Ashley W.' s residence later that evening, Deputy St. Clair spoke with her and her 

grandmother, Elizabeth McClain. While Ashley admitted being with Ronald W. and "Derrski" on the 

evening of December 9, 2010, she denied knowing they were going to rob anyone that evening. She 

further said she was "stuck" in the car when they decided to rob Beck's Kennels. Upon their return to the 

vehicle following the robbery, she said that "Derrski" gave her $100.00 but that she gave it to Ronald 

because she didn't want any part of the incident. (Jd.) 

Ms. McClain then gave Deputy St. Clair a drawing ofthe Beck's location and indicated she 

believed "Georgie" had drawn it. It was then discovered, however, that he had Ashley draw it about a 

week before the actual robbery. Ashley said he had told her then he intended to rob the Beckmans; but 

Ashley claimed she thought she had talked him out of it and was surprised when it actually happened. 

The "picture" was a rough sketch of the Beck's property, with a floor plan ofthe residence and an area 

labeled "TARGET." (Jd.) 

After the investigatory activities ofJanuary 11-14, 2011, Deputy St. Clair filed a Criminal 

Complaint against Ian Derr for 1 sl Degree Robbery (App. Rec. 7, pp. 32-35) and, in conjunction with the 

Berkeley County Prosecutor's Office initiated an Emergency Pick-up Order and Juvenile Petition against 

Petitioner, who was 16 years old. (App. Rec. 7, pp. 37-42; 1, pp. 1-4) The Petition charged Petitioner 

with robbery in the first degree, burglary and conspiracy to commit robbery. (App. Rec. 1, pp. 1-4) 

After being taken into custody on January 17, 2011, Petitioner was provided a Juvenile 

CustodylDetention Hearing in Berkeley County Magistrate Court on January 18, 2011. (App. Rec. 2, pp. 

7-12) At that hearing, John H. Lehman, Esquire, ofthe Public Defender Corporation, was appointed to 

represent Petitioner. (Jd., p.7) Upon the advice of counsel, a Waiver of Preliminary Hearing was executed 

(App. Rec. 3, p.13); Bail Bond was set in the amount of $250,000, with surety required; and Petitioner 

was detained in the Vicki Douglas Juvenile Center in Martinsburg, WV. (App. Rec. 2, p. 11; 4. Pp. 14-17) 
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On the same day, an initial hearing was held for the Petitioner in the Circuit Court of Berkeley 

County, WV, Sitting as a Juvenile Court, Division VIII (hereafter "Juvenile Court"), Circuit Judge John 

C. Yoder presiding. The case was designated as Delinquent Case No. 11-JD-3 and a Status/Agreed 

Adjudication hearing was scheduled for Monday, February 7,2011, at 8:30 a.m. (App. Rec. 8/9, p65-66) 

On February 7, 2011, however, John Lehman, Esquire, appeared on his behalf, but without his client 

being present, and the State appeared by Cheryl K. Saville, Berkeley Co. Assistant Prosecuting Attorney. 

(App. Rec. 12/13, p. 67) Upon discussion of counsel, and the State's request for a continuance, the court 

concluded that "insufficient time existed to properly hear the matter;" consequently, the hearing was 

rescheduled for Monday, February 14,2011, at 8:30 a.m. (Id; App. Rec. 112, pp. 3-7) 

On February 9,2011, however, the Defendant, along with another resident of the Vicki Douglas 

Juvenile Center, attempted an escape from that facility. Although the Staffwas successful in preventing 

the other resident's escape from the building, Petitioner did initially elude capture. Consequently, a 

Motion for Emergency Capias was filed against Petitioner in the Juvenile Court. (App. Rec. 14, p.68-70) 

Petitioner was again detained by U.S. Marshalls on February 10, 2011 and he was transported to and 

detained in the Chick Buckbee Juvenile Detention Center. 

On February 11, 2011, the Berkeley County Prosecutor's Office filed an Amended Petition in 

Delinquent Case No 11-JD-3. Such Amended Petition essentially reiterated the same allegations as the 

initial Petition with minimally additional assertions of details involving the same alleged offenses, with 

no material effect. (App. Rec. 21, pp.71-74) On the same date, the State, by Assistant Prosecuting 

Attorney Cheryl K. Saville and only Petitioner's Counsel, John H. Lehman, Esq., appeared before the 

Juvenile Court in his original case and jointly moved the court to continue the hearing previously set for 

February 14, 2011, due to an asserted scheduling conflict involving Mr. Lehman and to schedule a 

transfer hearing. It was represented by counsel that the previously scheduled hearing had been set for the 

purpose of scheduling a transfer hearing upon the filing of a Motion to Transfer by the State or to possibly 

take a juvenile plea if a decision to not transfer had been made. (App. Rec. 22/23, pp.75-76) Upon review 

of the case and upon the Juvenile's aforesaid alleged escape, for which charges would be filed, however, 
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the State decided to file a Motion to Transfer on February 10, 2011, one day before the amended Petition 

was filed. (App. Rec. 24, p.77-80) Accordingly, counsel jointly moved the court to cancel the previously 

scheduled status hearing and to schedule a transfer hearing (App. Rec. 25/26, p.81), to which the 

Juvenile's counsel, without discussion with his client or family, waived the seven (7) day statutory time 

frame for holding a transfer hearing in the interests ofhaving the requisite time "to be able to fully and 

meaningfully prepare for such hearing." Counsel further advised the court that the transfer hearing may 

require a full day to complete. (App. Rec. 22/23, pp.75-76) 

Accordingly, the Juvenile Court continued the hearing set for February 14,2011, and scheduled a 

Transfer Hearing for February 28,2011. (!d.) On that date, however, the Juvenile, again only by Counsel 

and the State, appeared in Juvenile Court, whereupon Judge Yoder noted that another date must be 

scheduled "to allow the necessary time to hear the matter properly" and ordered the next hearing to be 

held on March 22, 2011, at 9:00 a.m., for a Transfer Hearing. (App. Rec. 25/26, P. 81) 

On March 9,2011, the State filed its List of Witnesses and List of Exhibits, which included the 

"Hi Point 9 nun" handgun used by Derr in the robbery, but did not include the Pellet Gun allegedly 

possessed by Petitioner. (App. Rec. 40, pp. 82-83; 41, pp.84-86) 

On March 16,2011, Judge Yoder, sua sponte, reportedly due to pressing Abuse and Neglect case 

priority, again issued an Order Rescheduling Hearing and continued the Transfer Hearing from March 22, 

2011, at 9:00 a.m. until April 6, 2011, at 1:30 p.m. (App. Rec. 50151, p.87) 

On April 6, 2011, a Transfer Hearing, the hearing was held by Judge John C. Yoder, Sitting as the 

Berkeley County Juvenile Court. The State presented its evidence through a number of witnesses, 

including members of the Berkeley County Sheriffs Department and the three female victims of the 

underlying robbery. None of these witnesses, however, could provide any direct testimony as to either 

the identity or specific descriptions of the two men involved. Ian Michael Derr, the co-defendant, upon 

advice ofhis counsel, Nicholas F. Colvin, Esquire, exercised his Fifth Amendment right, was declared 

unavailable by the court, and did not testify. Similarly, Ashley W., the former girlfriend and cousin of the 

Petitioner, and uncharged co-conspirator, who drew the floor plan of the Beckman's residence, appeared 
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with her father and grandmother. Upon being Mirandized on the witness stand, Ashley W. and her father 

requested that she be allowed to speak with an attorney prior to answering any questions. Consequently, 

she was declared unavailable as a witness for the Transfer Hearing with the agreement of counsel and 

excused by the Court. CAppo Rec. 61/62/63, pp. 88-91; 120, pp. 11-62) 

Consequently, neither of the only two people who could directly connect the Defendant to the 

underlying crime testified. Therefore, the substance ofDerr's and Ashley W. 's statements to the Berkeley 

Co. Sheriffs Department was provided through the testimony ofLL Harmison. (Jd, 61/62163 at 91-93; 

120 at 62- 73) 

Upon the conclusion of such testimony, the Court, pursuant to WV Code §49-5-10(d)(1) found 

there was probable cause to believe the Defendant, being older than 14 years, had committed the crime of 

robbery involving the use or presenting of firearms or other deadly weapons. Accordingly, Judge Yoder 

granted the State's Motion for Transfer and Ordered that all three charges against the Defendant in 

Delinquent Case No.lI-JD-3 be transferred to adult criminal jurisdiction ofthe court. (App. Rec. 

61/62/63, pp.94-95; 120, pp.l04-105) 

Thereafter, on May 17, 2011, Ian M. Derr and Petitioner were indicted by the Berkeley County 

Grand Jury for Robbery in the 1 st Degree, Felony Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and Burglary. (App. 

Rec. 64, pp.96-97) On May 26,2011, the Petitioner appeared, in person and by Counsel, John Lehman, 

Esquire, before the Berkeley County Circuit Court, Judge Gina M. Groh, and was arraigned; a trial was 

set for September 27,2011. (App. Rec. 79, pp. 98-99) 

In the interim, Progress Letters, dated 03 June 2011 and 27 July 2011, respectively, were 

provided by the WV Division of Juvenile Services, WV Industrial Home for Youth, where the Petitioner 

was being held, to Judge John C. Yoder and made part of the record of the instant case. Such reports 

reflected generally acceptable behavior performance by the Petitioner, although clearly needing 

improvement in certain areas, but having made overall improvement from the first report to the second. 

Ofparticular note is the fact that Petitioner received his fourth nine week report card prior to the second 

Progress Letter and was selected for the Regular Honor Roll. (App. Rec. 80, pp. 100-101; 82, 102-103) 
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By its letter of September 9, 2011, the State, by Pamela Jean Games-Neely, Berkeley Co. 

Prosecuting Attorney, provided Petitioner's Counsel, a Plea Offer aimed at resolution of the charges. The 

offer provided that the Defendant would plead no contest to one count ofRobbery in the 1 st Degree and 

one count ofBurglary, with the remaining charge to be dismissed by the State. The plea also provided 

that both sides were free to argue sentencing but that the State would bind to concurrent sentencing. Such 

offer was designated to expire on September 14,2011, at 9:00 a.m. (App. Rec. 90, pp. 104-105) At the 

Status Hearing held on September 15, 2011, the parties advised the court that a plea agreement had been 

reached, the terms of which were spread upon the record. Accordingly, the Probation Department was 

ordered to prepare a pre-plea investigation report and the case was set for a potential plea and sentencing 

on November 17, 2011. (App. Rec. 91, p. 106) 

The requested Pre-Plea Investigation Report, dated November 9, 2011 and prepared by Carolyn 

A. Williams, Probation Officer, was duly filed with the court on that date. (App. Rec. 92, pp.107-117) 

Additionally, a Discharge Summary, dated 02 November 2011, again from the WV Industrial Home for 

Youth, regarding the Defendant, was filed with the court on November 15, 2011. Such report provides a 

"mixed bag" as to the performance ofMr. Whetzel, with behavior issues and instances of physical assault 

on other residents being reported. Although he continued "acceptable to good" performance in most areas 

of school, he was failing at least one subject. His counseling performance, however, was generally 

considered to be favorable, with the completion of the majority of his goals and objectives. In conclusion, 

and with awareness of his pending criminal charges, the Unit Management Team of the WV Industrial 

Home for Youth recommended that Petitioner "return to reside with his grandmother and guardian in her 

Martinsburg home," which would be shared with his four younger sisters. (App. Rec. 95, 118-119) 

On November 17,2011, the Petitioner and his Counsel, John Lehman, Esq., duly presented to the 

court an executed No Contest Plea to the prescribed offenses, reSUlting in an immediate conviction. (App. 

Rec. 96, p.l20) Although the Order was entitled Plea and Sentencing Order, only the Petitioner's pleas 

were accepted and a separate Sentencing Hearing was set for December 15,2011. (App. Rec. 102, 

pp.121-123) 
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At the Petitioner's Sentencing Hearing, Petitioner's Counsel generally argued that the primary 

difference between himself and the defendant were their different backgrounds. Whereas Counsel's 

father was an attorney and his mother a teacher, with himself being an attorney and part-time instructor at 

Blue Ridge Community College, his client's parents were both drug addicts and alcoholics who were 

currently incarcerated, having been convicted multiple times for felony offenses. In fact, Petitioner's 

father's current incarceration is for Robbery in the 151 Degree for which he was given a 20 year 

detenninate sentence. Without trying to minimize the seriousness of his client's conduct, Mr. Lehman 

argued the virtues of giving a young man an opportunity to stop the revolving cycle of crime by his 

parents; instead of surrounding him with hardened criminals for the next few decades ofhis life, which 

would fully "institutionalize" him. He further asked the Court to, instead, take the middle road and

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