PETITIONER'S ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


I. 	 WHETHER THE CIRCUIT COURT PREJUDICED THE PETITIONER'S CASE BY 
VIOLATING HIS PROCEDURAL, CONSTITUTIONAL DUE PROCESS RIGHTS BY: 

a. 	 HOLDING CRITICAL PROCEEDINGS OUTSIDE THE PETITIONER'S PRESENCE; 
b. 	 FINDING GOOD CAUSE FOR BEING OUTSIDE OF TIME STANDARDS FOR 

JUVENILE CASES; AND 
c. 	 TRANSFERING THE PETITIONER TO THE ADULT CRIMINAL JURISDICTION 

OF THE COURT? 

II. 	 WHETHER THE CIRCUIT COURT IMPROPERLY SENTENCED THE PETITIONER 
BY: 

a. 	 NOT FULLY CONSIDERING SENTENCING PURSUANT TO W.Va. CODE §49-5
13(e); 

b. 	 SENTENCING THE PETITIONER DISPROPORTIONATELY TO HIS ADULT CO
DEFENDANT; AND 

c. 	 IMPOSING AN EXCESSIVE SENTENCE?

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

AM. was charged with the first-degree sexual assault of his nine (9) year old sister, and the State 
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filed a motion to transfer him to the adult criminal jurisdiction of the court. At the transfer hearing, 

the State called the mother, Tom A.M. 's probation officer, a child protective service worker, and the 

investigating State Trooper. The court allowed the use of a psychological report and statements from 

both Tom A.M. and the victim. This Court ruled that the lower court was aware ofthe problems of 

the hearsay testimony based upon the record and that there was other non-hearsay evidence presented 

by the State which the court also relied upon in making its probable cause determination. Id. Noting 

that broader latitude on evidentiary matters should be given in transfer hearings and finding that the 

record did not consist entirely of hearsay testimony, this Court found no error in the circuit court's 

finding ofprobable cause. Id. 

The Petitioner relies on the cases of State v. Largent, 172 W.Va. 281, 304 S£.2d 868 (1983) 

and In the Matter ofStephfon W., 191 W.Va. 20, 442 S.E.2d 717 (1994) in support of his argument 

that the Court erred in finding probable cause in the case herein. These two cases are clearly 

distinguishable from the matter at hand. In Largent, the defendant was charged through juvenile 

petition with first-degree arson, among other offenses, and the State moved for transfer. The State 

presented the homeowner at the transfer hearing to testify about the fact that the fire had occurred. 

The State further presented to the court the indictment showing that the defendant was charged with 

first-degree arson, which was a transferable offense under W. Va. Code §49-5-1 O(d)(I). There was 

no testimony establishing a link between the arson and the defendant. In Stephfon W., the defendant 

was charged with first-degree murder by juvenile petition, and the State moved to transfer. At that 

transfer hearing, the State merely presented the court with the findings of fact and conclusions of law 

made by the juvenile referee at the previously held preliminary hearing, and the circuit court 

accepted those findings and conclusions as its own for the purpose of transfer. The defendant was 

also precluded from introducing any evidence at the hearing. In both cases above, this Court found 

that there was no meaningful independent transfer hearing upon which the lower courts could have 

made a finding ofprobable cause: in Largent, because an indictment on its face is not presumed or 
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conclusive evidence of the commission of-an offense by the person charged and in Stephfon W. 

because the court failed to undertake its own evidentiary hearing on the issue of probable cause and 

merely adopted the findings of the juvenile referee. 

In the case at hand, the circuit court held a full transfer hearing, including the testimony of 

several witnesses and the introduction of exhibits. Lt. Harmison testified that the Sheriff's 

Department had received an anonymous tip that the Petitioner and Ian Derr were involved in the 

home invasion at the Beckman residence. [AR,26.] This information led to several revelations in 

the case. First, it was soon discovered that the Petitioner had worked for Deborah Beckman and her 

late husband at the kennel they ran adjacent to their home. All three eye witnesses to the robbery 

(Deborah Beckman, Wendy Beckman, and Amy Edwards) testified that the two armed, masked men 

came into residence and the "short stocky" one went immediately back the hallway and retrieved the 

portable safe from the master bedroom. [AR, Transcript of Hearing Held April 6, 2011, pg. 18-50.] 

All three testified that this was the only item that they observed or believed the men to take. Deborah 

Beckman further testified that there were computers and other valuable items visible in the house at 

the time of the robbery. [Id., pg. 23.] This led Ms. Beckman to believe that, as she testified, 

whoever the robbers were, they were familiar with her home and the location of the lockbox such 

that it had to be someone who had worked for the kennel or an emergency responder who had been 

inside the home and bedroom the previous week when her husband had passed away. [Id.] Ms. 

Beckman further testified that as a former employee, the Petitioner would have known the 

whereabouts of this safe and that there was cash kept inside it. [Id., pg. 24-25.] Second, officers 

obtained from Elizabeth McClain, the Petitioner's grandmother, a sketch that she testified she had 

found in one of the Petitioner's school books. [Id., pg. 88-89.] This sketch was clearly a drawing of 

the layout of the Beckman residence (and showed the attached kennel labeled as "kennel") with the 

word "TARGET" written in capital letters in the comer ofthe master bedroom where the portable 

safe was kept. This sketch was introduced as evidence. Additionally, the court heard generalized 
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descriptions of the intruders as one being "short and stocky" and one being !~tall and skinny." The 

court had the opportunity to view both the Petitioner and his co-defendant Ian Derr. Further, officers 

were able to interview Ian Derr and Ashley W. in the course oftheir investigation. 

The Petitioner takes issue with the introduction ofhearsay statements made by both Ashley 

W. and Ian Derr in the testimony of Lt. Harmison. As discussed above, the court is given broad 

discretion in evidentiary matters in hearing cases for transfer, especially in the area ofhearsay. It is 

also established that Confrontation Clause issues can also be implicated in the introduction of 

hearsay at a transfer hearing. 

The evolution of the Confrontation Clause is traceable through not only through adult 

criminal cases but also in the case ofjuvenile transfer hearings. It was ruled by this Court in State v. 

Gary F., 189 W.Va. 523,432 S.E.2d 793 (1993), that 

"a juvenile is denied his constitutional right to confront his 
accusers when a critical witness, who has not been 
demonstrated as unavailable pursuant to the rules of evidence, 
is permitted to testify by telephone during a transfer hearing." 

Id., Syl. Pt. 3. TItis established that a shuwing Ullut:r tht: rules uf t:ViUt:llCt: was nt:eueu ill Older to 

provide an accused with the necessary due process at a transfer hearing. 

Under Rule 804 of the West Virginia Rules of Evidence, a witness is "unavailable" when 

that witness 

(1) 	"is exempted by ruling of the court on the ground of 
privilege from testifying concerning the subject matter of 
his or her statement; or 

(2) persists in refusing to testify concerning the subject matter 
of his or her statement despite an order of the court to do 
so; or 

(3) testifies to a lack of memory of the subject matter of his or 
her statement; or 

(4) is unable to be present or to testify at the hearing because 
of the death or then existing physical or mental illness or 
infirmity; or 

(5) is absent from the hearing and the proponent of a 
statement has been unable to procure the declarant's 
attendance (or in the case of a hearsay exception under 
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subdivision (b)(2), (3), or (4), the declarant's attendance 
or testimony) by process or other reasonable means." 

W.V.R.E. 804 (a)(1)-(5). Furthermore, 

"A statement which was at the time of its making so far contrary to 
the declarant's pecuniary or proprietary interest, or so far tended to 
subject the declarant to civil or criminal liability, or to render invalid 
a claim by the declarant against another, that a reasonable person in 
the declarant's position would not have made the statement unless he 
or she believed it to be true" 

is not excluded by the hearsay rule if the declarant is unavailable as a witness. W.Y.R.E. 804(b)(3). 

That rule also provides that "a statement tending to expose the declarant to criminal liability offered 

to exculpate the accused is not admissible unless corroborating circumstances clearly indicate the 

trustworthiness of the statement." Id. 

This Court did adopt the procedure for establishing a witnesses' unavailability pursuant to the 

penal interest exception of Rule 804(b)(3) that it requires for adult criminal trials in juvenile transfer 

proceedings in the case ofIn the Interest ofAnthony Ray Mc., 200 W.Va. 312,489 S.E.2d 289 

(1997). In the case at hand, Ashley W. was called to the stand, unrepresented by counsel but 

accompanied by her father. Because Ashley W., a juvenile, had not been charged and had not been 

granted immunity for her testimony, the State requested that she be Mirandized prior to offering 

testimony. Ashley W. and her father promptly requested counsel before answering any questions. 

As such, the parties agreed and the court found that Ashley W. was unavailable as a witness under 

Rule 804. [AR, Transcript ofHearing Held April 6, 2011, pg. 52-57.] Next, Ian Derr was called to 

the stand. He was accompanied by his attorney, Nicholas F. Colvin, Esq. Mr. Derr had already been 

indicted on charges of aggravated robbery, burglary and conspiracy related to his involvement in this 

crime. Mr. Derr answered preliminary questions as to his name, that he had been indicted on these 

crimes, and that he was represented by counsel who was present. The State asked Mr. Derr ifhe 

knew the Petitioner. At that point, Mr. Colvin began to instruct his client not to answer any further 

questions. There was an exchange on the record concerning Mr. Derr's refusal to answer a question 
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even-as simple as if he knew the Petitioner at which time the parties agreed -and the court ordered that 

Mr. Derr was unavailable as a witness. [Id., pg. 58-62.] Admittedly, the court did not move forward 

with the testimony and find whether the answer to each of the State's questions would or would not 

be facially incriminating, but it was clear at that point that Mr. Derr, upon advice of his counsel, was 

refusing to answer any further questions. This refusal, as did Ashley W. 's before him, rendered him 

unavailable under Rule 804. 

According to the outlined procedure in the Anthony Ray Mc. case, the court should then 

undertake a reliability analysis in satisfaction ofthe Confrontation Clause. The State concedes that 

the court did not expressly do this on the record. However, the State would argue that, analogous to 

the court in the case ofK.M. Comer v. Tom A.M., supra, the court was aware of the issues presented 

by the testimony of Ian Derr and Ashley W., listened to the testimony of Lt. Harmison, and gave the 

testimony the weight the court believed it deserved. The statement of Ashley W. introduced by Lt. 

Harmison was that Ashley waited in the car while the Petitioner and Mr. Derr committed the robbery. 

The statement ofMr. Derr introduced through Lt. Harmison was that he and the Petitioner committed 

the robbery at the Petitioner's suggestion, that the Petitioner had a BB gun or pellet gun and that Mr. 

Derr had a 40-calibur pistol, that they dumped the lockbox and worthless contents at a specific 

location, and that they all received a share of the money. 

According to Anthony Ray Mc., supra., 

''The burden is squarely on the prosecution to establish the challenged 
evidence is so trustworthy that adversarial testing would add little to 
its reliability. Furthermore, unless an affIrmative reason arising from 
the circumstances in which the statement was made provides a basis 
for rebutting the presumption that a hearsay statement is not worthy 
of reliance at trial, the Confrontation Clause requires exclusion of the 
out-of-court statement." 

Id., Syl. Pt. 13. 

Looking at the other evidence introduced by the State, the prosecution provided the court 

with ample evidence to rebut the presumption that the hearsay statements ofAshley W. and Ian Derr 
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were unreliable and established that said'statements were trustworthy such that adversarial testing 

would have added little to their reliability. Elizabeth McClain, the Petitioner's grandmother who is 

also the grandmother ofwitness Ashley W., also testified that Ashley W. told her that Ashley had 

waited in the car while the Petitioner and Ian Derr committed the robbery. [AR, Transcript of 

Hearing Held April 6, 2011, pg. 93.] In regard to the statements ofIan Derr, there is no evidence that 

Ian Derr was in any way familiar with the Beckmans or Beck's Kennel, but there was testimony from 

Deborah Beckman herself that indicated that the Petitioner had worked for the Beckmans and knew 

where the lockbox was located in the residence. This lends support to Derr's statement that the 

robbery was the Petitioner's idea. Additionally, the fact that Mr. Derr admitted that he had been in 

possession of the real handgun while the Petitioner had been in possession ofa modified BB gun or 

pellet gun is inherently reliable since it places the genuine pistol in Mr. Derr's hands. Mr. Derr also 

gave officers the gun he used in the robbery. Lt. Harmison and Deputy St. Clair were also able to 

recover an envelope from Beck's Kennel along the riverbank where Ian Derr had told them they 

dumped the unwanted contents of the lockbox. [Id., pg. 68.] Especially considering the distance of 

this location from the Beckman residence, this confirmed Mr. Derr's account of the disposal site. 

Furthermore, Mr. Derr told the officers that he had used his share of the money to pay rent, buy a car 

stereo and purchase marijuana. Mr. Derr only implicated himself in further criminal activity by 

giving that statement to the officers. As a further indictia of reliability, the court also heard that even 

as of the date of the transfer hearing, Mr. Derr had not been offered any type of a plea agreement by 

the State. [Id., pg. 59.] 

During argument following the taking of testimony at the transfer hearing, Petitioner's 

counsel argued that the State's case had been entirely based on the hearsay statements introduced 

through Lt. Harmison and argued against the transfer. [Id., pg. 103-104.] The court, in making its 

finding ofprobable cause for the transfer, informed the parties that the court appreciated the 

argument of the Petitioner's counsel in light of the evidence that the court had heard, but further 
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stated that there was "clear cut" probative evidence that was not hearsay that established probable 

cause. [Id. pg. 104.] 

Just as this Court allowed latitude in the lower court's hearing of and on-record analysis 

regarding hearsay evidence in K.M. Comer v. Tom A.M., supra., noting that the issue is one of 

probable cause at a transfer hearing and not one of culpability as it would be in an adjudication or at 

trial, this Court should allow latitude to the court herein recognizing the court's ability to "weed out 

the extraneous from the relevant and because of his legal training ...not be influenced by otherwise 

inadmissible evidence." In re E.H., supra. As discussed, the court properly declared the witnesses 

unavailable under Rule 804 pursuant to In the Interest of Anthony Ray Mc., supra., upon their refusal 

to answer further questions, and the State provided affinnative reasons throughout the course of the 

hearing that the court could have used to rely on the statements of the unavailable witnesses. In 

making his verbal ruling on the transfer, the court recognized the issues surrounding the hearsay 

testimony by acknowledging his appreciation of the arguments ofPetitioner's counsel, which 

demonstrated that the court, whether it had gone through the analysis on the record or not, had 

certainly considered the reliability of that testimony appropriately. 

The Petitioner also notes the case of State v. Mechling, 219 W.Va. 366,633 S.E.2d 311 

(2006), as further support that the hearsay evidence be excluded; although, the Petitioner concedes 

that Mechling applies specifically to a defendant's Sixth Amendment right to confront his accusers in 

the context of a criminal trial. As already discussed above, it is the State's position that the due 

process rights of the juvenile for the purposes of the transfer hearing, which are distinguishable from 

the due process considerations for a criminal trial according to the body of this Court's case law, are 

satisfied considering the testimony was otherwise admissible under both the rules ofevidence and 

precedent for juvenile transfer hearings, and the Petitioner had an opportunity to cross-examine the 

proponents ofthose statements. In re E.H., supra., K.M. Comer v. Tom A.M., supra., In the Interest 

of Anthony Ray Mc., supra. 
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Furthermore, even if this Court-finds that the introduction of hearsay statements made by Ian 

Derr and Ashley.W. through Lt. Harmison was error, such error should be found to be harmless 

under the circumstances of this case. As the State outlined above, there was ample other evidence to 

establish probable cause that the Petitioner committed these crimes for the purposes of the transfer 

hearing. The Sheriffs Department received an anonymous tip that the Petitioner and Ian Derr were

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